
 
Molalla City Council –Meeting Agenda   

Meeting located at: Molalla Adult Center   
315 Kennel Ave, Molalla, OR 97038 

October 28, 2015 
Business  meeting will begin at 7:00PM.  The Council has adopted Public Participation Rules. Public comment cards are 
available at the entry desk. Request to speak must be turned into to the Mayor prior to the start of the regular Council meeting. 
Executive Session : 6:30PM then after the regular session  

 
1. CALL TO ORDER – 1,067th  Regular Meeting  

A. Call the meeting to order  
B. Flag Salute and Roll Call 

 
2. COMMUNICATIONS AND PUBLIC COMMENT 

A. Minutes: September 10, 2015  
 

3. AWARDS, RECOGNITIONS & PRESENTATIONS  
4. PROCLAMATIONS  
5. PUBLIC HEARINGS  

 
6. NEW BUSINESS  

A. Library Advisory Board Citizen Appointment - Rogge 
B. Item Exceeding $10,000 – Cline/Huff 
C. City Manager Re-evaluation – Rogge  
D. Finacials – Penni  

 
7. CONTINUING BUSINESS 

A. Utility Fee Increases - Discussion Huff/Cline  
 

8. RESOLUTION 
A. 2015-11: Adopting Updates to the City of Molalla Addendum to the Clackamas County  

             Multi-Jurisdictional Natural Hazards Mitigation Plan – Huff  
B. 2015-12: A Resolution Increasing Fees For The City of Molalla Utility Billing- Penni 

 
9. ORDINANCES 

A. 2015-05: An Ordinance Adding Chapter 9.16 To Title Nine Of The Molalla Municipal Code 
Prohibiting The Establishment Of Marijuana Facilities Within The City And Declaring An 
Emergency. – Huff  DISCUSSION ITEM ONLY. POSSIBLE ADOPTION AT A LATER DATE  

 
10. REPORTS AND ANNOUNCEMENTS 

A. City Manager/Staff Reports –  Dan Huff  

 Special Council Meeting and Town Hall Meeting – November 4, 2015  

11. EXECUTIVE SESSIONS 
 
PER ORS. 192.660 (2)(e) – Real Property Transaction(s) and ORS 192.660(2) (f) to consider 
information or records that are exempt by law from public inspection 
 

12. ADJOURNMENT 



 
 



Minutes of the Molalla City Council Regular Meeting 
Molalla City Hall 

117 N. Molalla Ave., Molalla, OR  97038 
Wednesday, October 14, 2015 

 

Page 1 of 10 
 

ATTENDANCE:  Mayor Rogge, Present; Councilor Pottle, Present; Councilor Thompson, Present; 
Councilor Griswold, Present; Councilor Satter, Present; Councilor Riggs, Present. Councilor Clark, 
Present. 

STAFF IN ATTENDANCE:  City Manager Dan Huff, Present; City Recorder Sadie Cramer, Present; 
Public Works Director Jen Cline, Present; Library Director Diana Hadley, Present. 

MINUTES  
A. Councilor Thompson motioned to approve the minutes of September 10, 2015. Griswold 

seconded. Motion carried 7-0. 
B. Library Minutes – Information only 
C. TAC Minutes – Information only 

 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
Susan Hansen, representing Bear Creek Recovery Group, PO Box 50, Molalla, OR – (passed out a 
handout to each member of City Council, recorded as Exhibit A) says since the city of Molalla’s legal 
fees were 4-5 times more than those of Bear Creak Recovery it is understandable that the city leaders are 
trying to whitewash the lawsuit outcome. Statements made my city officials must be challenged. Federal 
statutes for the Clean Water Act encourage private enforcement by citizens in the public interest as state 
and federal agencies may not have the resources they need to do the job. Examination of years of DEQ’s 
records and field observations showed several violations by Molalla that DEQ had not enforced. In fall of 
2014, a highly placed DEQ official wrote “I agree with you that we need to do a better job of holding 
Molalla accountable for meeting all of their permit conditions.” Compliance with the increasingly 
complex Clean Water Act is mandatory. On October 5, DEQ met with PWD Cline and City Manager 
Huff and their lawyer, Jeff Ring, to discuss the need for a funded 5-year capital improvement plan, a 
facility plan, and recycled water delivery expansion. Hopefully city officials can begin to work with DEQ 
without the ongoing need for expensive legal support. Clearly given the chain of DEQ emails regarding 
this meeting, Molalla city officials are not confident in their legal standings with DEQ and are still 
spending significant money for legal support. Molalla’s lawyers waiting until the end of the 60 day period 
in March 2014 to contact them, BCR’s lawyer wrote that to preserve the process the complaint would be 
filed and, “we are open to discussing the potential for settlement negotiations with the City.” The City’s 
attorney Ring wrote back stating, “our inquiry was about negotiations prior to filing any suit.” The City’s 
attorneys did not attempt to further negotiate for months once the complaint was filed. The City spent a 
great deal of unnecessary money including flying in Ring/Bender lawyers from other parts of the nation. 
The consent decree requires extra compliance and procedures by Molalla above and beyond its permit. 
Molalla was required to develop an irrigation checklist for every irrigation cite and only City employees 
may operate the irrigation system using additional monitoring and reporting. Because the city has violated 
reporting requirements of its permit, the consent decree requires the City to post all reports on its website 
to improve transparency. Several DEQ warning letters were issued in 2013 detailing wastewater irrigation 
violations. The raw sewage spill in May and its tardy report to DEQ resulted in a civil penaly of 
$4,350.00. That incident delayed the settlement. Under the consent decree, every violation will now result 
in a $500.00 penalty which Molalla must add to the funds stipulated in the consent decree for biosolid 
removal and I&I. The first such violation occurred on September 7 when a required coloform test was not 
performed. The most disturbing thread running through the documents in DEQ, is Molalla’s ongoing 
claims it cannot afford to upgrade its equipment and tests. I&I reports were not filed, biosolids were 
builty up. The mandated lagoon leak test filed with DEQ on September 28th is being questioned by DEQ 
because of technical difficulties including a broken isolation valve and a broken valve inside an effluent 
line that is “cost prohibitive to repair at this time due to its age and location.” If Molalla city officials had 
been sincere about an early settlement to avoid huge legal bills, they would have immediately have asked 



Minutes of the Molalla City Council Regular Meeting 
Molalla City Hall 

117 N. Molalla Ave., Molalla, OR  97038 
Wednesday, October 14, 2015 

 

Page 2 of 10 
 

for settlement negotiations to begin when the 60 day notice of intent letter was received in January 2014. 
Molalla officials have no one to blame but themselves for the loss of over half a million dollars due to 
their delayed realization that this was a valid and necessary Clean Water Act lawsuit. 
 
Ryan Weishan, owner of Smokey Bones BBQ, 202 N Ross Street, Molalla – opened in May 2015, 
approached city about being able to open a drive-thru to his restaurant and was told the city wanted 
$1,700.00 to sit down and talk about whether or not they would allow him to do that. Everything is there 
already, all he’d have to do is fix a fence, turning that fence into a gate. There is already an entrance, an 
exit. Was told that there would have to be a traffic flow review. Says that his business will unlikely affect 
traffic, that it is not an In-N-Out or Sonic, that he’s just trying to keep his business open. He does not 
currently have a place that is warm and cozy for people to sit. Current patrons stand in the pouring rain 
sometimes to get their food as they were really busy. Says his business is very weather-driven. He is a 
small business, cannot afford to spend fee to just discuss the drive-thru option. Molalla has a stigma of 
being un-friendly to businesses, even though signage coming into town from both sides says otherwise. 
Spoke with City Planner Lennartz who told him he has many things on his desk and will get to it when he 
can. Lennartz told him he’d be there tonight to support a fee schedule change. He was there tonight to 
answer any questions that there might be. His business is good, clean, has an impecable reputation, and 
provides jobs to several people in town. Was surprised Lennartz was not present. Weishan said he asked 
Lennartz what would happen if he just went ahead and added the drive thru and Lennartz said that he 
would be fined $1,000 daily. Said he was frustrated that Lennartz would rather fine him than fight for his 
business and that he thought that was Lennartz’s job as a City Planner.  
 
Mayor Rogge replied by saying he will still have to go through the planning process and because his 
business does face a main artery through town, there are laws we have to go by, setbacks, standards, etc. 
Encourages Weishan to continue to work with City Hall to the best of his ability and that when presented 
with something official, City Council will consider the variance.  
 
PROCLAMATION  

A. Domestic Violence Awareness Month –  
Mayor Rogge read the Domestic Violence Awareness Proclamation from the Office of the Governor, 
Kate Brown, as presented in the agenda packet.  

 
NEW BUSINESS  

A. Library Advisory Board –  
Mayor Rogge has invited Sandy Nelsen, who represents our Library Board and sits on the Library District 
Board to come forward to update Council on current issues and to suggest she visits on a semi-annual 
basis in the future around budget season.  
 
Sandy Nelsen, 12012 S. Wildcat Rd, Molalla – currently holds office of President of the Library Advisory 
Board. Has been a member of the board since 2005, a member of the Friends of the Molalla Library since 
2002, and a reader before most of you were born. Has been asked to provide an overview of the 
relationship between the Molalla Public Library and the Clackamas County Library District. In 2009, 
voters voted to establish the Clackamas County Library District to provide permanent operational funding 
for libraries in the county. While these libraries, except for two county libraries, are city libraries, the 
majority of the operational funds come from the Library District. Some cities provide funding for their 
libraries themselves, while some smaller cities depend entirely on district funds, Molalla being one of 
those few. Before the voters brought in the District, 10 individual cities bought in with an initial 
investment of $10,000. After the measure passed, the city administrators and the county commissioners 



Minutes of the Molalla City Council Regular Meeting 
Molalla City Hall 

117 N. Molalla Ave., Molalla, OR  97038 
Wednesday, October 14, 2015 

 

Page 3 of 10 
 

jointly created the intergovernment agreement, which is the IGA, which would set down the guidelines on 
how the district would operate. As part of that IGA, the Library District Advisory Committee was 
established, which is referred to as the LDAC. Each city has a representative to the LDAC, she represents 
Molalla and has from its inception. LDAC is responsible for oversight of the libraries and reports to the 
Board of Commissioners. The funds come to the City for their disbursement to the library. While the 
library employees are considered City employees under guidelines of city personnel policies, the 
programs and collections of the library are connected to the District, working with the District Network to 
share the funds amongst the other libraries of the county. It allows our small library to be much more than 
it has means for and opens up the entire district to patrons. Possibilites are unlimited and everyone 
benefits from the collaboration. The network also supports the computer systems for all libraries along 
with its own IT support staff. District funding is vital to small libraries allowing them to prosper and 
grow. The service area is very large, serving a population of over 23,000. Only 8,820 is within Molalla 
proper. Patronage grows continually. Their goal, as established by the IGA, is to strive to meet the 
Oregon Library Association standards, and continue to work towards those.  
 
Mayor Rogge informs the Council that we currently have two IGAs that dictate what we’re doing with the 
library, one is for moneys that flow through the county, and the other is with the district. The reasoning of 
bring Sandy close to Council is that we will need to look at having a new library built in the near future, 
depending what the school board does with their property. Council will have to make some decisions in 
the future in regards to library funding, etc. Wants Sandy to continue to report to Council for those 
reasons. Councilor Thompson suggests consulting the LDAC via Finance Director Penni prior to the 
budget formation process, so that any plans can be worked into the budget in lieu of waiting for Council, 
as it might be too late in the budgetary process. Nelsen states that Library Director Hadley currently does 
work closely with FD Penni keeping her updated on necessary numbers involved. Mayor Rogge expresses 
appreciation for everything the board does and has done for several years.  
 

B. C800 Bond Measure - Huff   
  

City Manager Huff says he has given the Mayor and Council a letter of support for the C800 Bond 
Measure, as provided in the agenda packet. This bond measure replaces radio towers and radios for our 
public safety communication system, something that a group of people have been working on for quite 
awhile. The information has been slow to come forward, and the group he meets with quarterly, no formal 
name for the group, but consists of area-wide, Clackamas County city managers, continues to ask the 
group working on the radio system was what was to be done about the actual radios that are in the service 
vehicles or being carried on the persons of the public servants. The verbiage including the radios have 
been added to the bond and would cover replacement of radios in addition to the radio towers. The letter 
he wrote is in support of this. The Molalla Fire District was included in the letter as they are involved in 
public safety for the community. Councilor Pottle asks how much the bond was for and City Manager 
Huff says he has the figure, but not on him, but the amount is substantial, approximately $10 million. The 
cost to the city for outright purchasing radios was going to be approximately $75,000, which would have 
been necessary as the they wouldn’t work as soon as the new radio towers were in place. CM Huff asks 
for Council blessing before sending the letter. Mayor Rogge says she is in support of the letter, and a poll 
to the Councilors reflects unanimous support and encourages CM Huff to sign the letter and send it. 
 

C. CCTV Bids - Cline  
 
PWD Cline says that CCTV which is video inspection for our sanitary collection system. The agenda bill 
was not to exceed $90,000.00. Went out for an RFP a few weeks back and have received 3 proposals. The 



Minutes of the Molalla City Council Regular Meeting 
Molalla City Hall 

117 N. Molalla Ave., Molalla, OR  97038 
Wednesday, October 14, 2015 

 

Page 4 of 10 
 

3 contractors that submitted proposals were Pacific Int-R-Tek, ProPipe, and American Industrial & 
Municipal Services (AIMS). All information is as stated in Exhibit B. The selection PWD Cline 
recommends to perform services is Pacific Int-R-Tek, reasoning is stated in the Exhibit. Pacific Int-R-Tek 
came in as the middle bid as far as cost, but upon review, the lowest bid did not include any mobilization 
or traffic control costs, which was asked for in the RFP. Proposes not to exceed the $90,000.00, will not 
be able to CCTV the entire system this year, it will only be a portion, but if more can be done with the 
$90,000.00, then more CCTV will be done. Councilor Clark asks what percentage of the pipelines this 
would cover, PWD Cline says about 50%, possibly more. CM Huff says we will first look at the major 
problem areas, and PWD Cline says they will look at the major trunk lines first and areas in town that are 
the oldest. The recommendations came from our contracted engineer, Brown & Caldwell, for the I/I repair 
work. Mayor Rogge states we will be paying out to see how much work we have to do. PWD Cline says 
yes, this is still part of the investigation phase, that they will move forward next year with smoke testing 
in the areas they see will be most effective for smoke testing including older areas in town, with older 
laterals that fail frequently due to falling in on themselves. This is a portion of the investigation phase that 
needs to be done to work towards the final report to identify areas that need repairing first. Mayor Rogge 
asks that as diagnostics come in, when do they visualize starting actual work towards repair other than 
new development. PWD Cline says investigation will continue into the next fiscal year until the report is 
finalized. Doesn’t anticipate major repairs happening until 2017-18. Mayor Rogge asks if we are 
preparing the budget for these costs, and PWD Cline says we are already preparing. Councilor Riggs asks 
if the testing needs to be done during the winter or rainy season to get an accurate evaluation and PWD 
Cline confirms that yes, we are headed into that season and are scheduling to get started on the work. Due 
to Molalla’s high ground water level, we will see inflow coming in earlier than most cities will. Councilor 
Clark wants to make sure we will be able to visualize the testing during the rainy season to see the inflow. 
Councilor Clark asks how many pump stations we have pumping into main lines, PWD Cline replies that 
we have 5 lift stations, and confirms monitoring of hours of run-time of the pumps. Inflow run-time is 
easily detectable and spikes are seen during the rainy seasons, especially in the South Molalla areas. Also 
see spikes in influent at the WWTP will go from 1 million gallons a day to up to 3-6 million gallons 
during those rain events. Councilor Pottle asks whether the company we recently had out here videoing 
the lines was the same company we decided to hire. Confirms that there were no problems and videos 
were provided to all necessary parties. Councilor Clark motions to accept Pacific Int-R-Tek as our 
contractor to do our camera work, Councilor Pottle seconds. Councilor Thompson clarifies to set the 
amount not to exceed $90,000.00, Councilor Clark seconds. All in favor, 7-0. 
 

D. Aquatic Discussion – Riggs, Pottle, Thompson 
 
Councilor Thompson says he, Councilor Riggs, Councilor Pottle, and a few members of Friends of the 
Molalla Pool had a meeting last Wednesday with sub committee of the school board. They had requested 
a starting point for negotiation from the school district, working with finance director for guidance, at 
meeting came back with that information and have now started negotiations. Meeting was good, both 
sides respectful of each other, looking forward to a resolution that will satisfy everyone’s needs. Meeting 
again next Wednesday, will update Council on any new information received. Mayor Rogge asks if the 
meetings were open to the public, Councilor Thompson says they are now open to the public.  
 
CONTINUING BUSINESS 

A. Utility Fee Increases and Possible Town Hall Meeting – Huff/ Cline  
 



Minutes of the Molalla City Council Regular Meeting 
Molalla City Hall 

117 N. Molalla Ave., Molalla, OR  97038 
Wednesday, October 14, 2015 

 

Page 5 of 10 
 

CM Huff says a couple things will be discussed; schedule for town hall meeting and the 2006 and 2009 
rate increases that were provided to Council for water and sewer. Included in those rate increases there 
were a few incremental rate increases that should have happened in later years, but were not implemented.  
Reasons cities do that with their utility rates is so that there are not big jumps. Has brought Gerald Fisher, 
who prepared the report, there tonight, to discuss the report, information supplied and conclusions he 
drew. On back of report is a comparison provided. CM Huff states initially when he came to Molalla he 
was told Molalla has some of the highest rates around, and has since discovered this is not true based on 
the comparisons provided by Fisher. In addition, some of the cities listed are looking at increasing rates 
again. Introduces Fisher.  
 
Gerald Fisher, Senior Project Manager, Project Delivery Group, an engineering and land surveying firm 
located in Salem, Oregon. Fisher says Huff and Cline asked him to come in and give Council a review of 
the report. Report is included as Exhibit C. First part will be the sewer side, second part the water side. 
Encourages Council to ask any questions as they have them. Says we need to look at what the City’s 
budget is currently vs. what it was in the past, observing what the trends were in expenditures and 
revenues. That information helped them build a projected budget for the next fiscal year. Tells how much 
revenue we’re expected to get, how much expenditures will be with personnel and maintence 
requirements, also CIP (Capital Improvement Plan). Out of that information, based on what current rates 
are, there is a shortfall, or gap, and that is how they determine what the rate increase needs to be. He 
began by looking at the consumer price index from 2006 and came up with a 30% increase in cost of 
goods. Average inflation rate on per year basis in past 10 years has been about 2.9%, also went back 15 
years and 20 years, noticing rates at 2.3% and 2.4%. In the near term, increase has been almost 3%, and 
that is the rate they used as average inflation rate for future line items in the budget. Fisher states that 
League of Oregon Cities recently published through their weekly report the legislative portion; PERS has 
a shortfall coming, ranging between 16.5 to 19.5%. Used the 16.5% in PERS to carry forward for next 
year. A couple other line items that were about a 5% increase so those were adjusted too. Out of the sewer 
fund in 2006 you had Donovan Enterprises, Inc. do a rate study for the City. The City had no rate 
increases in 2004. Raised rates 5.5% in 2005, and 9.3% in 2006. Rate increase recommendation was for 
29.9% in 2007 for waste water. Council did pass that increase in 2006; rate was recommended as $24.69 
per EDU (Equivalent Dwelling Unit) and usage rate per 100 CF (Cubit Foot) of $2.44. References second 
page of report (Exhibit C), current fiscal year budget 2015-16 broken down by department. When those 
numbers are carried forward to the next fiscal year, a shortfall in the budget is reflected of 27-35%. Has 
not calculated using SDC’s due to using those funds to pay sewer debt. Explains that SDC funds usually 
are not included in the master plan, as the rate of recovery for SDC’s is inconsistent. Goes over different 
scenarios on how to pay sewer debt, either using 100% SDC’s solely for the principal balance due and 
revenue from user rates for interest and admin costs; or only using user rates for the entire sewer debt 
(principal/interest/admin), eliminating the use of SDC’s for that purpose. States that SDC’s are not able to 
keep up with what is due, says that SDC’s are not guaranteed money, cannot depend on it from year to 
year. Using SDC’s to pay the principal, will constantly deplete that fund. Recommends, in the interim or 
short-term, to use user rates to pay for the sewer debt, so the SDC fund is able to be built up again. Only 
when the SDC fund is built up, then does the City move forward with any capacity increasing projects. At 
the time, use the SDC funds to pay for such projects, eliminating the need to take out debt and/or increase 
user rates to cover costs. Fisher recommends the second option, eliminating the use of SDC’s to pay off 
sewer debt, then do an updated Capital Improvement Plan for the next 5 years and do a rate study for the 
sewer for that 5 year period. Revenues and rates will be able to be forcasted, also allowing PWD Cline to 
balance out her future projects, cost-wise. Councilor Clark asks why Fisher is estimating the sewer 
revenue to go down $2,000 over the next couple years. Fisher responds saying that the income forcasted 
in the budget is a combination of user fees, late fees, misc income, and carry over from the previous year. 



Minutes of the Molalla City Council Regular Meeting 
Molalla City Hall 

117 N. Molalla Ave., Molalla, OR  97038 
Wednesday, October 14, 2015 

 

Page 6 of 10 
 

The carry over amount will be used up this year, therefore not reflected in the next year(s). Fisher says he 
researched what our revenue is coming in at, which is about a 1% increase per year, when additional 
people move into the community, adding to that revenue stream. He took that 1% and carried it forward to 
the next year, but the figure is assuming we are not getting the revenue that this year had originally 
anticipated. The figure is being very conservative with how much revenue will come in to avoid over-
spending in the case revenue is not received. Councilor Clark says he does not understand how the sewer 
fund can go down. Councilor Thompson explains that what the report is looking at is the sewer fund 
specifically, including the left-over balance from the previous year. So in the future figure, since there 
will be no left-over balance, the future figure will be lower as there was no balance to carry over from the 
previous year. Fisher explains that the City’s expenditures are not keeping up with the revenue, putting 
the City in the position of a short-fall. Fisher states that this is a snapshot look of the two prior years’ 
actual, last year, and the current year’s budget, and taking those actual numbers to project forward what 
the next years’ figures would be. Important thing to note about 5 year plan is that there are constant 
variables that will cause changes each year and its important to go back and re-review annually to ensure 
projected rates will be sufficient. It is important to address any changes annually vs. after the 5 years to 
avoid drastic changes in rates. Monitoring these changes more often, and increasing rates more often, will 
make the changes more managable for users than one big jump in rates. Fisher summarizes the water rates 
as listed in Exhibit C. In 2009, Donavan Enterprises set up a forecast in their report for the next 5 years. 
6% initial increase for 2009-10, about 2% in two following years, 0% in the third year, and about 2% in 
the two subsequent years after that, through 2014-15. What actually happened is the City Council 
implementing the 6% increase, but did not make any of the other changes going forward. Good news is in 
the next few years, the City will be paying off some of its debts. A general obligation bond in water and a 
water revenue bond. The GEO bond is set to expire in fiscal year 2018-19 and the revenue bond in 2017-
18. The money currently paying out now to cover those bonds, will be able to be placed back into the 
budget for future capital projects. Since there are no SDC’s being used currently on debt, there will be no 
Option 2, leaving only one option. The funding gap they anticipate will be about 20%. They recommend 
the option listed and doing the 5 year plan and monitoring in annually, making any necessary 
adjustments, to ensure the City stays on track with the budget. Another thing Huff and Cline wanted was 
a comparison of different cities as shown in Exhibit C. The result is that most agencies have made rate 
increases as of July 1 last year, this year, and will do so again in the upcoming year. They had 5 year 
financial plans in place, but what the did differently was make those incremental increases automatic, 
avoiding having to go back each time for approval. Recommends that Council let staff monitor the 
fluctuations within that timeframe. Molalla’s current rates are among the lowest out there. The proposed 
rates will bring Molalla to the mid-range, but as of July 1 when other city’s rates increase, Molalla’s rates 
will be lower again. Mayor Rogge asks if the rates in the study included the park and rec fee that was 
previously on the water bills. CM Huff says that the park and rec fee would not show up on this particular 
report. Councilor Thompson thanked Fisher for his work, says it was exactly what they needed to make a 
determination on this issue. Recommends doing an in-depth review every 3 years instead of 10, avoiding 
drastic rate increases in the future. CM Huff asks Council to pick a date for the town hall meeting 
discussing the rate increases prior to implementation. He recommends that January 1, 2016 should be the 
time the sewer rate increase goes into effect and that the water rate increase could wait until July 1, 2016 
in the next fiscal year. Stresses the importance of establishing regular reviews of the capital improvement 
plan and implementing small changes more often rather than large ones less often to stay on top of 
funding for much needed future projects. Mayor Rogge recommends that a suggested date for a town hall 
meeting would be between council sessions in November, allowing time to notify people. Councilor 
Thompson expresses concern that the date of November 18 would not allow enough notice to people for a 
January 1st increase. CM Huff says there is an urgency for the rate increase due to nothing being done in 
the last 10 years and dire need for improvements on the sewer system now. Mayor Rogge recommends 



Minutes of the Molalla City Council Regular Meeting 
Molalla City Hall 

117 N. Molalla Ave., Molalla, OR  97038 
Wednesday, October 14, 2015 

 

Page 7 of 10 
 

making this an agenda item at the next council meeting to discuss a more in-depth discussion regarding 
the dates to implement the rate increases. Councilor Satter agrees that the rate increase would be hard for 
people to take on with local businesses already struggling to pay their bills. PWD Cline responds by 
saying, yes, the percentage of the increase seems high, but in reality in works out to be $12 per month. 
Councilor Riggs states that the total increase including both water and sewer rates would equal about $17 
per month. Also that the increase can be user-controlled by conserving more water. Councilor Clark asks 
how business usage is calculated vs. residential. PWD Cline responds saying it is a formula calculation, to 
which wasn’t readily available, but different than residential. Mayor Rogge confirms that the rate increase 
would be effective for businesses in addition to residences. CM Huff offers to bring back more details on 
how business usage is calculated; Councilor Clark would like this. It is determined that the town hall date 
will be November 4, 2015 @ 7:00 pm at the Adult Center. Discussion is made stressing the importance of 
informing the public, and how this increase will benefit them and their city. Fisher says that Molalla is not 
alone in this process, that other cities have experienced the same issues. Councilor Thompson asks if staff 
can have the ordinances needed to put this process in place available at the next meeting so discussion can 
be done at that point since time is sensitive. CM Huff says yes this is possible.  
 

B. STIP Funding – Cline/ Huff 
 
CM Huff says this is more of an update. Included in agenda packets is information from ODOT, and 
amongst that information is item #54. Item #54 is OR-213 @ Toliver Road. This means ODOT is 
continuing to keep these hot spot areas in line for potential of future funding. Part of this has to do with 
our diligence in keeping ODOT informed of these areas to keep them on this project list. Hwy 211 from 
Safeway to Ona Way is another area on this list that is pending, and may be for awhile, as other projects 
take precidence. Was contacted a couple weeks ago by ODOT staff proposing taking some of the money 
they’re trying to leveragd for Molalla, increase it by one million and just give it to the city as ODOT fix-it 
funds, having the city do the work to correct these hot spot areas. We would re-pave all of the highway 
from beginning to end of the town and make all sidewalks ADA compliant that currently exist. They 
would also give the city another million dollars and the rights to the road. Huff states that there are many 
people out there who don’t realize Hwy 211 is not a city right-of-way, and that is ODOT who owns and 
maintains it. Huff says this could be both a good and bad thing with all the new developments coming 
down the pike. He says it is a good thing ODOT is thinking about Molalla and that the decisions the 
Council is making to make Molalla a better place is making an impact and that people outside of the town 
are starting to notice. Mayor Rogge says that when CM Huff and herself went to Senator Gerard’s office 
in Salem about a year ago, Gerard told her that it is important to have their engineers ready to use any 
extra funds from other projects that ODOT may throw their way, otherwise that money will go elsewhere. 
Mayor Rogge says that is what public works has been doing is preparing these projects in anticipation of 
ODOT funds coming their way. ODOT realizes now that Molalla is preparing and has done the work 
needed to be ready to receive said funds. Mayor Rogge commends the work that city administration and 
public works have done to prepare Molalla for these opportunities.  
 
RESOLUTION 

A. Fee increase for Fix-It Ticket Program – Penni/ Cramer 
 
CR Cramer says that while reviewing rates and fees in the municipal court as they were with water/sewer 
rates, they found gap with the fix-it ticket fee. A fix-it ticket fee is currently $25.00 per offense for fixable 
offenses such as fail to carry proof of insurance and expired tags. The fee was implemented in 2004 and 
has not had an increase since. The current rate does not cover cost of the process of issuing the citation 
through actual processing of the citation and eventual adjudication of the ticket. CR Cramer says they are 



Minutes of the Molalla City Council Regular Meeting 
Molalla City Hall 

117 N. Molalla Ave., Molalla, OR  97038 
Wednesday, October 14, 2015 

 

Page 8 of 10 
 

proposing increasing the fee $50.00 to cover expenses. No profit would be made, the increase would hope 
to balance out the costs. Mayor Rogge asks where the funds from the fix-it ticket goes to, and CR Cramer 
says it is an administrative fee collected by the muni court to the general fund, benefiting the police 
department. Councilor Clark asks if someone was cited for not having a bumper on their car, who 
confirms that the bumper has been reinstalled and signs off on the correction. CR Cramer says it would be 
one of our officers. Councilor Clark asks then if the ticket makes it to the court. CR Cramer says it does, 
as the ticket needs to be processed administratively, entered in the computer system, and handled by 
Maeghan, the court clerk. The defendant is advised at the time of the stop to go into the court prior to 
their court date. If the offense is fail to furnish proof of insurance, and the defendant brings in proof, CC 
Maeghan has authorization to dismiss the ticket with a fix-it fee. CM Huff says this prevents the 
defendant from having to appear in court. Councilor Clark says he was cited personally for fail to carry 
proof of insurance and the fee was a lot more than $25.00 for not have a piece of paper in his car. He 
personally does not want to have to pay $75.00 if he has a tail light out to be told I have to replace a $1.00 
tail light. CM Huff says what happens most of the time is if you get pulled over for a brake light being 
out, most officers will make a judgement call, giving a warning, saying you’re in the system, if they see 
you again, they’ll impose the fee. Mayor Rogge asks what is the volume is per year of fix-it tickets, CR 
Cramer responds saying numbers vary per year, but approximately 125. Councilor Thompson points out 
that there is an Oregon Revised Statute for each offense fixable through the fix-it ticket program that costs 
more than the proposed fee, goes on your driving record, and can cause your vehicle to be towed. The fix-
it ticket program allows you to fix the offense, pay a fee, have the charge dismissed so it doesn’t go on 
your driving record. Councilor Satter suggests that people who get pulled over for such violations may be 
economically disadvantaged already and could be why the issue wasn’t fixed. Therefore tripling the fee 
won’t help the issue of fixing the offense. CM Huff says that receiving a fix-it is a better deal for the 
recipient because of the lower fine and that it doesn’t go on your driving record, possibly affecting future 
insurance rates. The problem we’re having is that costs to process the fix-it ticket are more than the fix-it 
ticket itself. Mayor Rogge asks if the fix-it program needs to be in place at all. CR Cramer answers saying 
it would be less adventageous to eliminate the program altogether, as it would be a disadvantage to those 
who might not be able to pay the full fine. The fee is still less than what the fine would be and is desirable 
to first time offenders by being a reduced amoung and not reflecting on their driving record therefore their 
insurance company. It gives those the opportunity to fix the problem before being issued a citation, that 
might lead to failure to pay, and suspension of their license, amongst other issues. Mayor Rogge clarifies 
saying the little old lady on a fixed income who only drives in Molalla, gets a fix-it ticket, pays the fee, 
gets pulled over again, is found to have previously offended, gets an actual ticket, then that whole process 
starts. CM Huff and CR Cramer confirms this is correct. Mayor Rogge says that its an early correction 
warning. CM Huff adds that the other thing this program does is provide funding for our municipal court, 
keeping it local. If not, then the little old lady will have to drive to Clackamas Town Center to take care of 
the ticket. The muni court is a great service, but it does cost money. Councilor Pottle says he understands 
that things need to be paid, but we’re talking about the people of Molalla. If a light bulb goes out, most 
know a mechanic to be able to get it fixed. And also in Molalla, the officers have the discretion to inform 
people of their offense and choose whether or not to cite them. Councilor Clark says that coming from a 
big city, in his youth he had a lot of fix-it tickets. One thing they would do was bring the car to the police 
station, prove whatever needed fixed was fixed to a police officer, then the whole problem goes away. No 
cost. It wouldn’t go through the court system. Cost would only be the officer writing the ticket and 
throwing the piece of paper away. If, at that date, the person had not fixed the violation of the vehicle, 
then he would be in support of a penalty. CM Huff says that this is a process that is already in place and 
does not know the factors the officer considers when deciding whether or not to issue the fix-it ticket. 
Councilor Thompson suggests that when Councilor Clark was younger, and experiencing his own fix-it 
tickets, that it was likely before the time of Measure 5 and Measure 50 when the general funds which 



Minutes of the Molalla City Council Regular Meeting 
Molalla City Hall 

117 N. Molalla Ave., Molalla, OR  97038 
Wednesday, October 14, 2015 

 

Page 9 of 10 
 

actually pay for the police are healthy, whereas the people’s property taxes were actually subsidizing the 
cost of him going in to get your fix-it ticket resolved. CR Cramer says that she has been reviewing the 
various fix-it tickets coming in and very few are simple things as burnt out lightbulbs. The ones she’s 
seeing are no proof of insurance. Mayor Rogge adds that we are paying a police officer to stop the car and 
waiting for the defendant to decide when they are fixing the offense. If we have two officers on duty, 
either on a call or running someone to Clackamas, there may not be an officer available when the 
defendant comes in to get his violation signed off on. Councilor Clarks asks if there is a police officer in 
city hall at all times, Mayor Rogge responds no. Councilor Satter said when she had a fix-it ticket it was a 
lady in the office that verified the correction, not necessarily an officer. Mayor Rogge asks for a motion. 
Councilor Thompson motions to adopt Resolution 2015-10; Councilor Pottle seconded. Motion passes 5-
2 with Councilors Satter and Clark each as nays.   
 
REPORTS AND ANNOUNCEMENTS 
 
CM Huff and CR Cramer report nothing at this time. 
 
PWD Cline updates Council on Urban Renewal Projects. Yesterday, the first lift of Heintz street was 
paved. The new portion of the street will remain closed until substantial completion has been done. It may 
look ready to open, but due to unfinished items such as man hole covers sticking up, unfinished 
sidewalks, it needs to remain closed. Should be able to open in a few weeks as long as everything is on 
schedule. An open house has been scheduled for the Molalla Urban Renewal project, the next project 
they’ll start, that is scheduled for November 5, 2015 from 4-7:00 pm. This is for Molalla Avenue, 
currently in the design phase, is about 90% complete, should be going out to ad beginning of January 
2016 to hire a contractor for construction. CM Huff states that Gary Deardorff has graciously allowed 
them to use his corner building on Molalla and Main as it is in the general location of the project. 
Councilor Riggs says a lot of residents ask why that road was so extensive in the way it was built (Heintz) 
and asks if it is the city or the county that dictates that. Cline says it was the city who determines it and 
asks in what way. Councilor Riggs says they ask why it was done so expensively, fancy sidewalks, that 
roads don’t match others in Molalla. Cline and Huff clarify that the road/sidewalks they’re comparing the 
new ones to are likely ones that don’t meet current standards, and ones that we are looking to improve in 
the future. Looking at Heintz as a main pedestrian and bike way, so the sidewalks must be able to 
accommodate that activity, hence the 6 ft width. Huff says that the reasons some of the other roads in the 
city are failing, such as in Big Meadow, are because they followed those standards that were used on 
other roads in Molalla causing the roads to not last as long. Huff clarifies that the street standards within 
the city limits are the city’s standards, that county has nothing to do with streets inside city limits. 
Councilor Riggs asks how the city’s standards are determined. Cline responds by saying we use geo 
technical investigations prior to building a road and that geo technical engineer designs what the road 
structure should be. Sidewalk widths are determined by the use of the road. Mayor Rogge says that 
because Heintz will be a major artery running parallel to Hwy 211, diverting a lot of traffic, this road 
needed to be of a better grade. Councilor Pottle asks a question on behalf of some citizens as to why the 
road in front of Columbia Bank had to be made so wide as to not offer parking in front of the bank 
anymore. Cline responds that the roadway meets standards, that it is a 12 foot wide lane with a 2 foot shy 
distance to the curb for protection. The center line in the left turn lane can be adjusted over a foot, but at 
this point in time, has not done so as it is a new road. In the future, when striping needs to be redone, that 



Minutes of the Molalla City Council Regular Meeting 
Molalla City Hall 

117 N. Molalla Ave., Molalla, OR  97038 
Wednesday, October 14, 2015 

 

Page 10 of 10 
 

adjustment will be made. Mayor Rogge confirms that parking in front of the bank that parking would still 
not be allowed. Cline confirms this, that the bank does provide its own parking for customers. Councilor 
Pottle relays concerns that there are many elderly people who frequent the bank and are concerned about 
no more handicapped parking in the front on the street. Cline clarifies that it is a public street, it is not to 
be used for handicapped parking. Councilor Pottle says he will give Cline’s contact information to those 
parties who were concerned.  
 
Councilor Satter reports that foundations were poured for the bridge, Bear Creek Bi Way. Now waiting 28 
days for the testing. Mayor Rogge asks if they have funds to complete the bridge; Councilor Satter 
confirms yes they do. Projected completion is 28 days, or whenever testing determines the final product is 
ready. Cline adds that they still need to construct the pathway, only the sub product is down at this time. 
Councilor Satter says funding is still needed for the asphalt portion of the pathway, approximately 
$8,000.00. The bridge is constructed and will arrive in pieces via truck to be assembled at the site.  
 
Councilor Riggs reports that he’s in cohort 3 with the Ford Institute and have done some narrowing, down 
to three, one is the issue of a dog park, and second is better communication needed with the City of 
Molalla so all parties are informed, and third is improvements (lighting, fencing) at the basketball court 
by the library. 
 
Mayor Rogge reports she’s been busy with disaster programs. All of October is the Great Shakeout where 
we prepare for earthquakes. It is a national push. Had shelter training at Foothills church, 32 participants 
who learned how to work with Red Cross to set up shelter and whatever church is designated. Tuesday, 
attended training on CPOD where you learn how to distribute, food, water, tarps and ice in the event of an 
emergency. Practiced exercises on where in Molalla the CPODS would be set up to prepare to feed people 
in the event of a disaster. On October 23rd at Grace Church, from 1-4 pm, we’ll be building and 
assembling a Red Cross shelter complete with cots and everything else needed. The next morning from 9-
1 pm, dignitaries from all over county coming to Molalla to Grace Church, 7 venues for these dignitaries 
to determine what is needed to prepare for a disaster. Molalla is test sight, people are impressed with 
trainings provided, cooperation with the fire department, church leaders and helpers. Stresses the 
importance of the pre-planning and preparation, as without it, it creates chaos. Commends Molalla, wants 
all possible community leaders/ Councilors to attend the event. Wants to approach re-writing the 
Emergency Preparedness Plan in the first quarter, after the holidays, so that it can be ready to go in the 
event of an emergency, hopefully by May.   
 
ADJOURNMENT 

Councilor Thompson made the motion to adjourn; Councilor Riggs seconded. Motion carried 7-0.  





 

 

City Of Molalla 
City Council Meeting 

 
 Agenda Category: New Business  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Jennifer Cline, Public Works Director   
APPROVED BY:  Dan Huff, City Manager                                               

Subject:  Public Works Dump Truck Purchase 

Recommendation:   Pre-Approval for Purchase 

Date of Meeting to be Presented:     October 28, 2015 

Fiscal Impact:  Not to exceed budgeted amount of $85,000.00

Background:   

The current Fiscal Year 2015/16 budget includes a purchase of Public Works Dump Truck not 

to exceed $85,000.00 with expenditure shared between departments in the Capital 

Improvement Plan as follows: 

 Streets – $25,000.00 

 Water – $25,000.00 

 Sewer – $25,000.00 

 Storm – $5,000.00 

 

Pre‐approval for purchase of a dump truck will improve negotiation ability and prevent loss of 

the purchase.   

 

 

 

 
 



 

 

City Of Molalla 
City Council Meeting 

 
 Agenda Category: Discussion  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Dan Huff, City Manager   
APPROVED BY:  Dan Huff, City Manager                                               

Subject: Wastewater and Water Rates  

Recommendation:   Discussion 

Date of Meeting to be Presented:     October 28, 2015 

Fiscal Impact:  Variable  

Background:   
 
Included with this memo are copies of potential Resolutions that Council may consider 
for Wastewater and Water Rate increases. Council is fully aware that wastewater rates 
have not experienced and increase since 2006 and water rates have not been examined 
since 2009. Also included is the report provided during the October 14th regular meeting 
identifying the basis of the rate proposal. We have coordinated the use of the Adult 
Center for a Town Hall meeting on November 4, 2015 in order to publicly discuss these 
proposals.   
 
 
 











































RESOLUTION No. 2015 - ____________ 
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF MOLALLA, OREGON ESTABLISHING SANITARY 
SEWER RATES AND ANNUAL INFLATION ADJUSTMENTS THEREAFTER AS 
PROVIDED BY MOLALLA MUNICIPAL CODE CHAPTER 13.08 
 
WHEREAS, The Molalla Municipal Code Section 13.08.370 provides that fees for sanitary 
sewer service be established by resolution of the City Council; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City desires to regularly review the costs of operating, maintaining and 
improving the sanitary system; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City has previously established via Resolution No. 2006-10, a schedule of 
future sewer rate increases that began on October 1, 2006; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City has caused to be prepared a fee rate study which has identified sanitary 
sewer system costs, rate structure alternatives and equitable cost recovery methods; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City intends to complete a 5 year sanitary sewer capital improvement plan and 
rate study and revise the fees based on the updated plan by July 1, 2016; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City desires to establish within its sanitary sewer rate structure both incentives 
for water conservation and the ability for the City to recover the costs of providing sanitary 
services: and 
 
WHEREAS, sanitary sewer rates were not adjusted annually based on the Bureau of Labor 
Statistics Portland-Salem for All Urban Consumers (CPI-U) since the initial increase in 2006; 
and 
 
WHEREAS, the City desires to establish within its sanitary sewer rate structure an annual 
increase to address inflation, service provision and maintenance. 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Molalla as follows: 
 
Section 1. Resolution No. 2006-10 is repealed upon the effective date of this Resolution. 
 
Section 2. The fixed fee shall be based on a rate per equivalent dwelling unit (EDU) per 
month. The variable fee shall be based on the per hundred cubic feet (Ccf) of winter average 
water consumption. Sanitary Sewer Rates and Fees are established: 
 

Rate Schedule – Sanitary Sewer 
(All Residential, Commercial, and Industrial inside the City) 

 
All Classes Rate Use Charge 

(per 100 cubic feet) 

Equivalent Dwelling Unit $31.39 $3.10 

 



Rates for all services outside of the City limits shall be 150% of the rate schedule shown above. 
 
Section 3. Annual inflationary adjustments for all sanitary sewer users shall be effective 
automatically each year on July 1 based on the published values by the Bureau of Labor 
Statistics Portland-Salem for All Urban Consumers (CPI-U). 
 
Section 4. This Resolution is and shall be effective January 1, 2016 and all rates and charges 
established herein for sanitary sewer customers shall go into effect as of such date.  
 
Duly adopted by Molalla City Council the _______ day of ____________________, 2015. 
 
 
      _____________________________________ 
      Mayor, Debbie Rogge 
 
ATTEST the ___________day of __________________, 2015 
 
_____________________________  
City Recorder, Sadie Cramer   



RESOLUTION No. 2015 - ____________ 
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF MOLALLA, OREGON ESTABLISHING SANITARY 
SEWER RATES AND ANNUAL INFLATION ADJUSTMENTS THEREAFTER AS 
PROVIDED BY MOLALLA MUNICIPAL CODE CHAPTER 13.08 
 
WHEREAS, The Molalla Municipal Code Section 13.08.370 provides that fees for sanitary 
sewer service be established by resolution of the City Council; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City desires to regularly review the costs of operating, maintaining and 
improving the sanitary system; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City has previously established via Resolution No. 2006-10, a schedule of 
future sewer rate increases that began on October 1, 2006; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City has caused to be prepared a fee rate study which has identified sanitary 
sewer system costs, rate structure alternatives and equitable cost recovery methods; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City intends to complete a 5 year sanitary sewer capital improvement plan and 
rate study and revise the fees based on the updated plan by July 1, 2016; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City desires to establish within its sanitary sewer rate structure both incentives 
for water conservation and the ability for the City to recover the costs of providing sanitary 
services: and 
 
WHEREAS, sanitary sewer rates were not adjusted annually based on the Bureau of Labor 
Statistics Portland-Salem for All Urban Consumers (CPI-U) since the initial increase in 2006; 
and 
 
WHEREAS, the City desires to establish within its sanitary sewer rate structure an annual 
increase to address inflation, service provision and maintenance. 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Molalla as follows: 
 
Section 1. Resolution No. 2006-10 is repealed upon the effective date of this Resolution. 
 
Section 2. The fixed fee shall be based on a rate per equivalent dwelling unit (EDU) per 
month. The variable fee shall be based on the per hundred cubic feet (Ccf) of winter average 
water consumption. Sanitary Sewer Rates and Fees are established: 
 

Rate Schedule – Sanitary Sewer 
(All Residential, Commercial, and Industrial inside the City) 

 
All Classes Rate Use Charge 

(per 100 cubic feet) 

Equivalent Dwelling Unit $33.36 $3.30 

 



Rates for all services outside of the City limits shall be 150% of the rate schedule shown above. 
 
Section 3. Annual inflationary adjustments for all sanitary sewer users shall be effective 
automatically each year on July 1 based on the published values by the Bureau of Labor 
Statistics Portland-Salem for All Urban Consumers (CPI-U). 
 
Section 4. This Resolution is and shall be effective January 1, 2016 and all rates and charges 
established herein for sanitary sewer customers shall go into effect as of such date.  
 
Duly adopted by Molalla City Council the _______ day of ____________________, 2015. 
 
 
      _____________________________________ 
      Mayor, Debbie Rogge 
 
ATTEST the ___________day of __________________, 2015 
 
_____________________________  
City Recorder, Sadie Cramer   



RESOLUTION No. 2015 - ____________ 
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF MOLALLA, OREGON ESTABLISHING WATER 
RATES AND ANNUAL INFLATION ADJUSTMENTS THEREAFTER AS APPROVED BY 
MOLALLA MUNCIPAL CODE CHAPTER 13.04 
 
WHEREAS, The Molalla Municipal Code Section 13.04.160 provides that fees for water service 
be established by resolution of the City Council; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City desires to regularly review the costs of operating, maintaining and 
improving the water system; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City has previously established via Resolution No. 2009-19, a schedule of 
future water rate increases effective November 1, 2009; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City has caused to be prepared a fee rate study which has identified water 
system costs, rate structure alternatives and equitable cost recovery methods; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City intends to complete a 5 year water capital improvement plan and rate study 
and revise the fees based on the updated plan by July 1, 2016; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City desires to establish within its water rate structure both incentives for water 
conservation and the ability for the City to recover the costs of providing water services; and 
 
WHEREAS, water rates were not adjusted annually based on the Bureau of Labor Statistics 
Portland-Salem for All Urban Consumers (CPI-U) since the initial increase in 2009; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City desires to establish within its water rate structure an annual increase to 
address inflation, service provision and maintenance. 
 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Molalla as follows: 
 
Section 1. Resolution No. 2009-19 is repealed upon the effective date of this Resolution. 
 
Section 2. The Water Rates and Fees are established: 



Rate Schedule – Water 
(All Residential, Commercial, and Industrial inside the City) 

 
Meter Size 

(inches) 
Rate Use Charge 

(per 100 cubic feet) 

3/4 $13.78 $2.93 

1 $23.01 $2.93 

1-1/2 $45.89 $2.93 

2 $73.45 $2.93 

3 $147.03 $2.93 

4 $229.71 $2.93 

6 $459.29 $2.93 

8 $734.89 $2.93 

 
All Fire Line Rates are set at $0.00 per month. 
Rates for all services outside of the City limits shall be 150% of the rate schedule shown above. 
 

Section 3. Annual inflationary adjustments for all water users shall be effective 
automatically each year on July 1 based on the published values by the Bureau of Labor 
Statistics Portland-Salem for All Urban Consumers (CPI-U). 
 
Section 4. This Resolution is and shall be effective July 1, 2016 and all rates and charges 
established herein for water customers shall go into effect as of such date. 
 
Duly adopted by Molalla City Council the _______ day of ____________________, 2015. 
 
 
      _____________________________________ 
      Mayor, Debbie Rogge 
 
ATTEST the ___________day of __________________, 2015 
 
_____________________________  
City Recorder, Sadie Cramer   
 



 
 
 

Water & Sewer Rates Recommendations 
 

October 14, 2015 
 
 
 

Prepared for: 

 

 
 

City of Molalla 
117 N. Molalla Ave. 
Molalla, OR 97038 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

Prepared by: 

 

Gerald Fisher, PE, Senior Project Manager 

Project Delivery Group, LLC 
3150 SE 22nd Street 

Salem, Oregon 97302 
  



 

P a g e  | 1 
PDG Rates Review Report for City of Molalla 

Introduction 

In early September 2015, Project Delivery Group (PDG) was asked to review the sewer and water enterprise funds 

and recommend adjustments to service charges. This work was performed under an existing engineering services 

contract executed on May 8, 2015. The objective of this report is to provide an interim rate increase to meet funding 

requirements in fiscal year (FY) 2016-17. 

Background and Budget Preparation 

Performing a review of the Consumer Price Index – All Urban Consumers in Portland-Salem, the inflation rate from 

2006 to 2014 was 29.8%. The average inflation rate was 2.9%, 2.3%, and 2.4% for the 10, 15, and 20 year averages, 

respectively. For the purposes of this review the average consumer inflation for 2015 and beyond was set at 3.0%. 

A budget for FY 2016-17 was prepared and an inflation index of 3% was applied Personnel Service and Materials and 

Services estimated costs from FY 2015-16. Only three expenditure line items were modified in these two sections. 

PERS increased by 16.5% based on a recent League of Oregon Cities legislative update regarding a PERS estimated 

funding shortfall. Insurance and the Assistant Plant Operator line items increased by 5% based on input from staff. 

Based on prior year actuals, User Fee revenues increased by a modest 1% and other revenues were adjusted based 

on averages of prior year actuals. Each fund Contingency was set at 10% of the total fund revenues. 

Sewer Fund Review & Rate Recommendation 

In 2006, the City received a Sanitary Sewer System Cost of Service Study Update from Donovan Enterprises, Inc. (DEI) 

outlining the revenue requirements to cover operating and capital improvement costs for FY 2006-07. DEI based their 

recommendation on increased system operating and maintenance costs and new debt service. 

The 2006 actual costs for services by category were Personnel Services $331,366, Materials and Services $323,211, 

Capital Outlay $5,130, and Transfers Out $390,000. The 2007 budget saw a 21.20% increase in Personnel Services, 

42.85% increase in Materials and Services, 874.58% increase in Capital Outlay, and a 15.38% increase in Transfers Out 

for an overall budget increase of 29.87%. 

Personnel Services increased due to a change in cost allocations that covered multiple employees in the Public Works 

Department. Materials and Services increased due to increased energy, fuel and chemical costs along with deferred 

maintenance and some sewer rehabilitation costs. Capital Outlay costs were related to sewer rehabilitation work but 

the large increase compared to the prior year was due to very low expenditures in 2006. Transfers Out increases 

were tied to transfers to the Sewer System Expansion Fund for the construction of capital projects. The City 

anticipated using a Clean Water State Revolving Fund loan program for facility improvements in the amount of 

$4,132,740. The annual debt service was estimated at $154,833. 

The City had no rate increases in 2004 and raised rates by 5.52% in 2005 and 9.31% in 2006 according to the report. 

The recommendation for 2007 was a rate increase of 29.90% which would raise the average single family sewer bill 

from $32.01 per month to $41.58 per month. City Council passed the rate increase on September 27, 2006 setting 

the base rate at $24.69 per equivalent dwelling unit (EDU) and the variable rate at $2.44 per hundred cubic feet (Ccf). 

The City has not increased the rate since 2006. 

The following table outlines the costs increases associated with inflation, estimated increases higher than inflation 

(PERS), and proposed capital improvement costs based on the City’s capital improvement plan. There are two options 

available to the City. Option 1 is to continue to fund debt principal with system development charge (SDC) fee funds 

and utilize rate funds for interest costs.  Option 2 eliminates the use of SDC’s for debt payment, to allow for the 



 

P a g e  | 2 
PDG Rates Review Report for City of Molalla 

recovery of the fund, and cover 100% of the loan costs with user fees. The yearly debt service for the CWSRF loan is 

$187,343. The audited actual revenue for Improvement SDC’s was $15,148 in FY 2013-14 and adopted budget 

revenue of $10,820 in FY 2014-15. Estimates for the current FY 2015-16 is $48,690 which is still well below $128,835 

principal requirement for the CWSRF loan. 

City of Molalla Sewer Fund Rate Recommendations 
October 2015 

Department FY 15-16 
Option 1 - FY 16-17 

(w/SDC) 
Option 2 - FY 16-17 (w/o 

SDC) 

  Income Expense Income Expense Income Expense 

Sewer Revenue $ 2,021,175  $ 1,801,877  $ 1,801,877  

Personnel Service  $ 482,330  $ 504,134  $ 504,134 

Materials and Services  $ 888,850  $ 915,516  $ 915,516 

Capital Improvements  $ 155,500  $ 257,500  $ 257,500 

Transfers  $ 315,929  $ 381,658  $ 510,493 

Contingency  $ 100,000  $ 180,188  $ 180,188 

Fund Total $ 2,021,175 $ 1,942,609 $ 1,801,877 $ 2,238,996 $ 1,801,877 $ 2,367,831 

Estimated Carry-Over $ 78,566  $ (437,118)  $ (565,953)  

Sewer Fund Rate Increase Summary 

Revenue Required   $ 2,238,996  $ 2,367,831  

Est. User Fee Revenue   $ 1,611,311  $ 1,611,311  

Est. Other Revenue   $ 190,566  $ 190,566  

Addl. User Fee Need (Gap)   $ 437,118  $ 565,953  

Rate Increase (%)   27.13%  35.12%  

 

Typically, when sewer system development charges are set up the total cost for all capacity related projects includes 

the costs for engineering and construction with the assumption that the project will be fully funded prior to the 

completion of construction. While allowed by statute, the use of SDC’s for payment of loan or bond interest and the 

associated administrative fees should be avoided. Because the rate of recovery for SDC’s is not consistent, SDC 

funding of project cost should only be considered when the SDC funded portion is collected by the City (Cash-on-

Hand). Otherwise, City’s run the risk of significant user rate increases to cover funding gaps when development stalls 

or does not occur. 

In order to meet current debt requirements, complete capital improvement projects, and keep up with inflationary 

and other cost increases, we recommend that the City adopt Option 2 and complete a five year capital improvement 

and rate forecast prior to the beginning of FY 2016-17. Based on input from staff related to unanticipated 

professional services costs that will likely exceed the current budget for the professional services line item, we also 

recommend that the fees take effect on or before January 01, 2016. 

Water Fund Review & Funding Forecast 

In 2009, the City received a Proposed Rate Adjustments for Water Service from Donovan Enterprises, Inc. (DEI) 

outlining the revenue requirements to cover operating and capital improvement costs for fiscal year 2009-10. DEI 

based their recommendation on increased system operating and maintenance costs. The forecast estimated a 6% 

increase in FY 2009-10 followed by a 1.94%, 1.98%, 0%, 1.97%, and 2.06% in subsequent years through FY 2014-15.  



 

P a g e  | 3 
PDG Rates Review Report for City of Molalla 

The 2009 estimated costs for services by category were Personnel Services $480,651, Materials and Services 

$319,008, Capital Outlay $0, and Transfers Out $513,471. The 2010 budget saw a 7.86% increase in Personnel 

Services, 3.3% increase in Materials and Services, 0% increase in Capital Outlay, and a 2.91% decrease in Transfers 

Out for an overall budget increase of 3.05%. 

The City implemented the 6% rate increase but did not follow the recommended increases in the report or make 

annual CPI adjustments as specified in Resolution No. 2009-19. 

The City will pay off a Water General Obligation Bond in FY 2018-19 and a Water Revenue Bond in FY 2017-2018. 

Because no SDC funds are currently used for debt there is only one rate increase option to meet operating and 

improvement costs in FY 2016-17. The following table outlines the costs increases associated with inflation, 

estimated increases higher than inflation (PERS), and proposed capital improvement costs based on the City’s capital 

improvement plan. 

City of Molalla Water Fund Rate Recommendations 
October 2015 

Department FY 15-16 Option 1 - FY 16-17 

  Income Expense Income Expense 

Water Revenue $ 2,095,875  $ 1,854,804  

Personnel Service  $ 521,650  $ 545,468 

Materials and Services  $ 585,750  $ 603,323 

Capital Improvements  $ 232,000  $ 467,500 

Transfers  $ 250,000  $ 323,150 

Contingency  $ 150,000  $ 185,480 

Fund Total $ 2,095,875 $ 1,739400 $ 1,854,804 $ 2,124,921 

Estimated Carry-Over $ 356,475  $ (270,117)  

Revenue Required   $ 2,124,921  

Est. User Fee Revenue   $ 1,336,329  

Est. Other Revenue   $ 518,475  

Addl. User Fee Need (Gap)   $ 270,117  

Rate Increase (%)   20.21%  

 

In order to meet current debt requirements, complete capital improvement projects, and keep up with inflationary 

and other cost increases, we recommend that the City adopt Option 1 and complete a five year capital improvement 

and rate forecast prior to the beginning of FY 2016-17. We also recommend that the fees take effect on or before 

July 01, 2016. 

The following comparison table provides water and sewer rates in relation to the City’s existing and proposed rates. 

All value have been converted to include a base rate and 600 Ccf use rate for a single family residential home. 

Adoption dates of the water and sewer rates for the City of Vernonia and City of Battleground, WA could not be 

confirmed at the time of this report, but the values provided were listed on the City’s website as the current rates. 

  



 

P a g e  | 4 
PDG Rates Review Report for City of Molalla 

Sewer  Water 

City Base Rate + 600 CF   City Base Rate + 600 CF 

Vernonia $ 93.00   Portland (2015) $ 59.11 

Newberg (2015) $ 66.05   Vernonia $ 48.75 

Silverton (2015) $ 61.37   Scappoose (2014) $ 42.76 

Portland (2015) $ 57.00   St Helens (2014) $ 41.48 

Stayton (2013) $ 56.99   Estacada (2015) $ 35.12 

Woodburn (2010) $ 53.29   Newberg (2015) $ 31.93 

Molalla (Proposed w/o SDC) $ 53.14   Molalla (Proposed w/o SDC) $ 30.98 

St Helens (2014) $ 50.33   Molalla (Proposed w/SDC) $ 30.98 

Molalla (Proposed w/SDC) $ 50.00   Oregon City (2015) $ 29.66 

Oregon City (2015) $ 49.39   Silverton (2015) $ 29.49 

Hood River (2013) $ 48.00   Hood River (2011) $ 28.74 

Canby (2015) $ 46.20   Fairview (2014) $ 28.68 

Scappoose (2015) $ 43.31   Stayton (2012) $ 28.62 

Vancouver (2015) $ 43.10   Canby Utility (2015) $ 27.97 

Molalla (Existing) $ 39.33   Molalla (Existing) $ 25.77 

Battleground $ 37.27   Battleground $ 25.75 

Salem (2015) $ 35.97   Vancouver (2015) $ 24.71 

Estacada (2015) $ 35.20   Woodburn (2006) $ 22.11 

Fairview (2014) $ 31.98   Salem (2015) $ 21.80 

Assumes average SF residential use at 600 CF 

All fees converted to Molalla unit of measure 



Resolution 2015-11 
 

Adopting Updates to the City of Molalla Addendum to the Clackamas County  
Multi-Jurisdictional Natural Hazards Mitigation Plan 

 
 
 
Whereas, the City of Molalla recognizes the threat that natural hazards pose to people, 
property and infrastructure within our community; and 
 
Whereas, undertaking hazard mitigation actions will reduce the potential for harm to 
people, property and infrastructure from future hazard occurrences; and 
 
Whereas, an adopted Natural Hazards Mitigation Plan is required as a condition of future 
funding for mitigation projects under multiple FEMA pre- and post-disaster mitigation 
grant programs; and 
 
Whereas, the City of Molalla adopted the City of Molalla Addendum to the Clackamas 
County Natural Hazards Mitigation Plan, on August 25, 2012, and 
 
Whereas, Clackamas County has subsequently completed an update to the Clackamas 
County Multi-Jurisdictional Natural Hazards Mitigation Plan of which the City of Molalla 
is party to; and 
 
Whereas, the City of Molalla has updated its addendum to the Clackamas County Multi-
Jurisdictional Natural Hazards Mitigation Plan to reflect new information contained 
therein through the creation of a new appendix (Appendix C), and 
 
Whereas, the Oregon Office of Emergency Management and Federal Emergency 
Management Agency, Region X officials have reviewed and approved the Clackamas 
County, Multi-Jurisdictional Natural Hazard Mitigation Plan (dated April 8, 2013) and 
pre-approved Appendix C of the City of Molalla Addendum to the Clackamas County 
Natural Hazards Mitigation Plan (dated, April 12, 2013) contingent upon this official 
adoption of the participating governments and entities; 
 
Now, therefore, be it resolved, that the City of Molalla adopts Appendix C: City of Molalla 
Addendum to the Clackamas County Natural Hazards Mitigation Plan 2012 Amendments 
and Update; and 
 
Be it further resolved, with adoption of Appendix C, the City of Molalla Addendum to the 
Clackamas County Multi-Jurisdictional Natural Hazards Mitigation Plan is updated to 
reflect the changes identified in said appendix, and 
 
Be it further resolved, that the City of Molalla will submit this Adoption Resolution to 
the Oregon Office of Emergency Management and Federal Emergency Management 



Agency, Region X officials to enable final approval of the City of Molalla Addendum to 
the Clackamas County Multi-Jurisdictional Natural Hazards Mitigation Plan. 
 

4. This resolution takes effect when signed by the Mayor. 
 
   
Adopted by the City Council this ____ day of October, 2015. 
      

        
           _____________________________________ 

      Debbie Rogge  
Mayor 

 
ATTEST: 
 
 _____________________________________ 
 Sadie Cramer 

City Recorder 
 



RESOLUTION 2015-12 
 

A RESOLUTION INCREASING FEES FOR THE  
CITY OF MOLALLA UTILITY BILLING 

 
The City Council of Molalla finds that: 
 
WHEREAS, the Molalla Municipal Code specifies that the City Council shall  
  establish fees for city services and programs by resolution; and  
 
WHEREAS, the Oregon Administrative Rules states that fees may be charged to  
  reimburse the public entity of incurred expenses by furnishing   
  administrative services; and 
 
WHEREAS, after administrative review the City of Molalla Utility Billing   
  program the fees for accounts in a delinquent status need to be   
  increased to offset the costs for the additional management of these  
  accounts; and 
 
WHEREAS, for administrative efficiencies the fees is to be imposed by the City of 
  Molalla Utility Billing are:  

 Late Fee   $10.00  (defined as all accounts with a balance of  
    greater than $5.00 on the first business day after  
    the 20th of a given month)  

 Termination Notice $25.00 (notice sent out to customers 60 days or  
    greater past due notifying them of shut off   
    potential 20 calendar days before actual service  
    termination) 

 Shut Off Fee  $50.00 (fee for water service that has been   
    terminated for failure to respond to the termination 
    notice and then restored after payment) 

 
Now, therefore, based upon the above findings, be it resolved by the City Council of the 
City of Molalla, the fees listed for City Hall, City of Molalla, are hereby established as 
listed effective this 28th day of  October, 2015.  
 
       ______________________________ 
       Mayor Rogge 
ATTEST this 28th day of October, 2015: 
 
 
___________________________ 
Sadie Cramer 
City Recorder 


	Agenda 102815
	Minutes 101415
	Citizen Appointment - Library
	AB - DumpTruckPre-Approval
	Utility Rate Discussion 10-28-15
	Finacials
	Water Sewer Rate Info
	Wastewater Utility Rate Resolution Oct 2015 - Clean Copy with SDC Funds
	Wastewater Utility Rate Resolution Oct 2015 - Clean Copy without SDC Funds
	Water Utility Rate Resolution Oct 15 - Clean Copy
	Water & Wastewater -FINAL Recommendations for Rate Increases
	MolallaNHMP_Draft_AdoptionRes_2013 (002)
	RESO UB Fee Increases

